Public Document Pack

Sefton Council ¥ ‘./‘,/

$
s pAp\® S rotting Carers

MEETING: CABINET URGENT BUSINESS COMMITTEE
DATE: Wednesday 10th August, 2011
TIME: 9.30 am
VENUE: Town Hall, Bootle

Member

Councillor

P. Dowd (Chair)
Parry
Robertson

COMMITTEE OFFICER: Steve Pearce
Head of Committee and Member Services

Telephone: 0151 934 2046
Fax: 0151 934 2034
E-mail: steve.pearce@sefton.gov.uk

The Cabinet is responsible for making what are known as Key Decisions,
which will be notified on the Forward Plan. Items marked with an * on the
agenda involve Key Decisions

A key decision, as defined in the Council’'s Constitution, is: -

e any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and
Capital Programme approved by the Council and which requires a gross
budget expenditure, saving or virement of more than £100,000 or more
than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the greater

e any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact
on a significant number of people living or working in two or more Wards

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.




This page is intentionally left blank.



AGENDA

ltems marked with an * involve key decisions

Iltem Subject/Author(s) Wards Affected
No.
1. Apologies for Absence
2. Declarations of Interest
Members and Officers are requested to give
notice of any personal or prejudicial interest and
the nature of that interest, relating to any item
on the agenda in accordance with the relevant
Code of Conduct.
3. Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 6)
Minutes of the meeting held on 17 June 2011
4. Academy Conversion Agreements All Wards (Pages 7 -

20)
Report of the Strategic Director - People



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET URGENT BUSINESS COMMITTEE

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, BOOTLE
ON FRIDAY 17TH JUNE, 2011

PRESENT: Councillor Moncur (in the Chair)
Councillors Porter and Robertson

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P. Dowd and Parry.
2, DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were received.

3. MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 13 January
2011 be confirmed as a correct record.

4, EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED:

That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business
on the grounds that it would involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the
Act. The Public Interest Test has been applied and favours exclusion of
the information from the press and public.

5. WORK PROGRAMME CONTRACT FRAMEWORK

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Built Environment
that explained the contract framework offer received from A4E Ltd. for the
Council (through Sefton@Work) to act as its sub-contractor delivering “end
to end” services as part of the Department for Work and Pensions Work
Programme.

The report indicated that the Work Programme was the Government’s
response to tackling worklessness and unemployment and was a new
initiative due to commence in June 2011.

RESOLVED: That

(1)  the contract framework agreement offered by A4E Ltd. to assist
Sefton residents into employment be accepted and the Head of

Page 5



Agenda ltem 3

CABINET URGENT BUSINESS COMMITTEE- FRIDAY 17TH JUNE, 2011

(2)

Corporate Legal Services be authorised to enter into the necessary
sub-contract work for the Work Programme; and

it be noted that the proposal was a Key Decision but, unfortunately,
had not been included in the Council’'s Forward Plan of Key
Decisions. Consequently, the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee (Regeneration and Environmental Services) had been
consulted under Rule 15 of the Access to Information Procedure
Rules of the Constitution, to the decision being made by this
Committee as a matter of urgency in view of a request from the
prime contractor (A4E) for an accelerated acceptance of a contract
under the DWP Work Programme which carries an obligation for
timely acceptance.

Page 6



Agenda ltem 4

Report to: Overview and Scrutiny Committee — Date of Meeting: 9 August 2011
Children’s Services
Cabinet Urgent Business Committee 10 August 2011
Subject: Academy Conversion Agreements
Report of: Strategic Director - People Wards Affected: All

Is this a Key Decision? Yes Is itincluded in the Forward Plan No (Rule 15)

Exempt/Confidential No

Purpose/Summary

To seek authorisation for officers to sign the documentation required to by the
Government’s academy conversion process.

Recommendation(s)
The Cabinet Urgent Business Committee is recommended to:

1) Note the statutory requirements regarding academy conversion

2) Authorise appropriate officers to complete the necessary agreements required
as part of the academy conversion process for the schools currently seeking
academy conversion.

3) Note that the proposal was a Key Decision but, unfortunately, had not been
included in the Council's Forward Plan of Key Decisions. Consequently, the
Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Children’s Services) has been
consulted under Rule 15 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the
Constitution, to the decision being made by Cabinet as a matter of urgency on
the basis that it was impracticable to defer the decision until the
commencement of the next Forward Plan because of the timescales
determined by the academy process.

How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Objectives?

Corporate Objective Positive | Neutral | Negative
Impact | Impact Impact

Creating a Learning Community N

Jobs and Prosperity

Environmental Sustainability

Health and Well-Being

Children and Young People

Creating Safe Communities

Creating Inclusive Communities

0| N| O o | W N -~
2] 2] 2 21 2] 21 2

Improving the Quality of Council
Services and Strengthening Local

Page 7



Agenda ltem 4

| Democracy

Reasons for the Recommendation:

Cabinet Urgent Business Committee need to authorise appropriate officers to enter into
the agreements required as part of the academy conversion process for schools seeking
to convert to academies.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs
Not applicable
(B) Capital Costs
Not applicable

Implications:

The following implications of this proposal have been considered and where there are
specific implications, these are set out below:

Legal

The conversion of schools to academies is a statutory process under the Academies Act
2010.

On 25th May 2011, the Secretary of State for Education made Academy Orders in
respect of the conversion of a number of schools in Sefton into academies[ see Annex A
attached]. The Orders provide that on the conversion date, the schools in question shall
become academies and that they shall cease to be maintained by the Local Authority.

The principal issues in relation to conversion are:- Transfer of Staff; Transfer of Land and
Transfer of Assets and Contracts. These issues may be dealt with in two documents, a
Commercial Transfer Agreement and a Lease Agreement, although officials from the
Department for Education have confirmed that conversion can take place even if these
Agreements are not concluded.

The advantages of the Council entering into these agreements are :-

1. If the Lease Agreement is not concluded, the Minister may direct a form of
disposal of the land under his powers in the Act. This could result in terms which
are less favourable to the Council than those which are contained in the Lease
Agreement.

2. The Commercial Transfer Agreement contains certain indemnities and warranties
that protect the Council against certain future liabilities. If the Agreement is not
concluded, the Council would not have the benefit of these.

3. The Agreements provide clarity and certainty with regard to the obligations
between the parties. For example, in the Commercial Transfer Agreement, the
School would provide an acknowledgement that the Council has provided the
necessary information in relation to staffing matters”.

Page 8



Agenda ltem 4

Human Resources

Upon conversion to an academy staff within the school will transfer under TUPE to the
new academy.

Equality

1. No Equality Implication
2. Equality Implications identified and mitigated |:|
3. Equality Implication identified and risk remains |:|

Impact on Service Delivery:
Not applicable
What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

The Head of Corporate Finance (FD881) has been consulted and her comments are :
The authorisation of officers to sign the documentation does not lead to further financial
implications. The financial implications arising from the national policy to create
academy’s has been included in the 20011/12 budget and the medium term financial
plans previously reported to Cabinet.

Head of Corporate Legal Services (LD 238/11) have been consulted and any comments
have been incorporated into the report.

Are there any other options available for consideration?

No — Department for Education Officials have indicated that the Secretary of State can
direct the academy conversion process can continue if the agreements are not signed.

Implementation Date for the Decision

Following the call-in period for the minutes of this meeting
Contact Officer: Mike McSorley, Head of Learning Support
Tel: 0151 934 3428

Email: mike.mcsorley@sefton.gov.uk

Background Papers:

The following papers are available for inspection by contacting the above officer(s).
Academies Act 2010

Academy Orders in respect of Birkdale Deyes, Formby, Range, Maghull, Chesterfield
and Greenbank High Schools.

Draft lease with Birkdale, Deyes, Formby, Range, Maghull, Chesterfield and Greenbank
High Schools.

Draft transfer agreement with Birkdale Deyes, Formby, Range, Maghull, Chesterfield and
Greenbank High Schools.

Page 9



Agenda ltem 4

BACKGROUND

1 Academies in Sefton

1.1 As Members will be aware the following secondary schools in Sefton have
registered with the Department for Education for conversion to academies:

Birkdale High School (conversion date August 2011)
Chesterfield High School (conversion date October 2011)
Deyes High School (conversion date September 2011)
Formby High School (conversion date September 2011)
Greenbank High School (conversion date November 2011)
Maghull High School (conversion date Ocober 2011)
Range High School (conversion date October 2011)

O O O O O O O

2 Academy Conversion Process

21 The process for schools converting to academies is legislated for under the
Academies Act 2010. This provides for the governing body of a school to register
and determine to go through the academy conversion process. The diagram
below, produced by the Department for Education, outlines the process to be
followed:

Registration

Becoming an

1. Schools Register interest using the on-line form.

2. A named contact in Department for Education (DfE) Ac a d e m y :
contacts the school and supports them through the .
conversion process. Conve I"Slon process

3. School governing body starts the consultation required
by legislation with interested parties (can start later but
must be completed before Funding Agreement).

1. School governing body and Foundation (where relevant) pass a
resolution in favour of academy conversion.
2. School submits application to convert form to DfE.
Application to convert/| 3. Schools develop plans to support another school to raise
pre-approval checks standards and discuss with named DfE contact.

4. Local Authority/ governing body start the TUPE process.
5. Secretary of State approves school proposal and issues Academy
Order.

1. School submits grant claim to DfE and receives £25,000 grant to
cover costs associated with the conversion process.
2. School finalises governance documents based on DfE model
documents provided.
Achieve Funding 3. School registers the Academy Trust with Companies House.

4. School agrees leasing arrangements for the school land and
Agreement buildings.
5. Local Authority/governing body complete the TUPE process.
6. School completes required consultation with interested parties.
7. School submits the Funding Agreement to the Secretary of State
for approval.

1. YPLA provide school with indicative funding letter.
2. DfE sign and seal Academy funding agreement.
3. School undertakes CRB checks as necessary.

- H - : 4.School puts new financial systems and contracts in place.
Pre opening Openlng 5. School completes academy registrations e.g. with exam
bodies.

6. School opens officially as an Academy

<+— Overall process can typically take between 3 and 4 months

2.2  As part of the conversion process the new Academy Trust will need to enter into
certain agreements with the Council as follows:

Page 10



Agenda ltem 4

Land Issues

2.3 The Academies Act 2010 contains specific powers for the Secretary of State in
respect of the land of the schools when they were maintained schools. It is
intended that the transfer of publicly funded land owned by the local authority to
the Academy will usually be by way of a 125-year lease.

2.4  The advisors on behalf of converting schools have provided the lease documents
which will form the basis of the lease once the schools convert to academies.
Officers are reviewing these leases to ensure there are no undue risks to the
authority and that any usage rights etc are preserved. The leases transfer the
responsibility for the operation and management of the building to the Academy
Trust.

Commercial Transfer Agreement

2.5 This document is designed to ensure that all information on the staff who are
transferring to the academy is recorded and transferred to the Academy Trust, so
that the appropriate arrangements for payment of salaries, pension contributions,
etc. can be made. It also includes details of any assets or contracts that will
transfer to the Academy Trust and of those that will not.

2.6 It should be discussed and agreed with the Academy Trust and the local authority
before the Academy opens.

2.7 The advisors on behalf of converting schools have provided the commercial
transfer agreement which is an agreement between the school governing body,
the local authority and the academy trust. Officers are reviewing the documents
to ensure there are no undue risks to the authority.

Assignment or novation of contracts

2.8 This forms part of the Commercial Transfer Agreement and covers agreements
and contractual arrangements which will need to transfer to the Academy Trust.

2.9 Specific contract and arrangements in respect of each of the converting schools
are being identified.

TUPE Process

210 TUPE consultation has been undertaken in respect of the schools seeking to
convert to academies. Meetings have been held with the Trades Unions on a
regular basis since May 2011.

2.11  With regards to TUPE, there is an obligation to provide written information about
the transfer to employee representatives. The information which the current
employer must give in writing to employee representatives (which will be union
representatives where a trade union is recognised in respect of the relevant
category of staff) is as follows:

(@) The fact that the transfer is to take place, when and why;

Page 11



Agenda ltem 4

2.11

212

3.1

3.2

3.3

(b)  The "legal, economic and social implications" of the transfer for the affected
employees;

(c) The "measures" which the employer envisages it will take in connection
with the transfer or, if no measures are envisaged, that fact; and

(d)  Any measures which the employer envisages the Academy Trust taking in
connection with the transfer in respect of the transferring employees or, if
no measures are envisaged, that fact.

The legal obligation to consult under TUPE only arises where the current
employer (and not the Academy Trust) envisages taking "measures"” in relation to
affected employees in connection with the transfer. The School seeking to
convert have all confirmed that they are not proposing any “measures”.

The Council has provided information as detailed above and additionally has
requested that the Academies provide a response to any queries from the trade
unions. In this respect each Academy is taking their own legal advice. Any
responses received have been forwarded to the trade unions. Additionally it is
understood that the trade unions have raised matters direct with each school.

Council Requirements

The School Governors have resolved to convert to academy status subject to
completion of the funding agreement with the Secretary of State.

The schools will ask the Council to enter into the Lease agreement and
Commercial Transfer agreement as described previously.

In order for the agreements to be entered into, Members need to authorise
appropriate officers from Young People and Families and Corporate Services to
conclude negotiations and sign the documentation on the Council’s behalf.

Financial Implications

The financial implications arising from the national policy to create academy’s has
been included in the 20011/12 budget and the medium term financial plans
previously reported to Cabinet.

Page 12



Agenda ltem 4

Annex A — Academy Orders

Rt Hon Michael Gove MP
Secretary of State

Sanctuary Buildings Great Smith Street Westminster London 5W1P 38T
tel: 0370 0012345 ministers@education.gsi.gov.uk

To: The Chair of Governors of Birkdale H]gh School
Sefton Local Authority

ACADEMY ORDER

1. This is an Academy Order made further to section 4 of the Academies
Act 2010.

2. | hereby order that on the conversion date Birkdale High School shall be
converted into an Academy.

3. The conversion date shall be the date that the Academy opens as a
school further to and as provided for in Academy arrangements made
further to section 1 of the Academies Act 2010.

4. On the conversion date Sefton Local Authority shall cease to maintain
Birkdale High School.

5. The independent school standards (as defined in section 157(2) of the
Education Act 2002) are to be treated as met in relation to the Academy -
on the conversion date.

Signed on behalf of the Secretary of State for Education by:

Signed:.... ¢= y ................... Date: 25 May 2011

Lord Hill of Oareford
Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for Schools

Department for

Education
Page 13



Agenda ltem 4

To:

{475 |

Rt Hon Michael Gove MP

ecrefary of State

Sanctuary Buildings Greal Smith Street Westminster London SWIP 38T

tel: D370 0012345 ministersSeducation gsl.aov.auk

the Chair of Governors of Chesterfield High Scheol
Sefton Local Authority

ACADEMY ORDER

. This is an Academy Order made further to section 4 of the Academies

Act 2010,

| hereby order that on the conversion date Chesterfield High School shall
be converted into an Academy.

The conversion date shall be the date that the Academy opens as a
school further to and as provided for in Academy arrangements made
further to section 1 of the Academies Act 2010,

On the conversion date Sefton Local Authority shall cease to maintain
Chesterfield High School:

The independent school standards (as defined in section 157(2) of the
Education Act 2002) are to be treated as met in relation to the Academy
on the conversion date,

Signed on behalf of the Secretary of State for Education by:

Signed.......~

'tLL\.A;?/“( Date: 10 May 2011

Lord Hill of Oareford
Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for Schools

Fclucation

Page 14



Agenda ltem 4

CRETARY DF 5
4 N i

Rt Hon Michael Gove MP
Secretary of State

Sanctuary Buildings Great Smith Street Westminster London SW1P 38T
tel: 0370 0012345 ministers@education.gsi.gov.uk

To: The Chair of Governors of Deyes High School
Sefton Local Authority

ACADEMY ORDER

1. This is an Academy Order made further to section 4 of the Academies
Act 2010.

2. I hereby order that on the conversion date Deyes High School shall be
converted into an Academy.

3. The conversion date shall be the date that the Academy opens as a
school further to and as provided for in Academy arrangements made
further to section 1 of the Academies Act 2010.

4. On the conversion date Sefton Local Authority shall cease to maintain
Deyes High School.

5. The independent school standards (as defined in section 157(2) of the
Education Act 2002) are to be treated as met in relation to the Academy
on the conversion date.

Signed on behalf of the Secretary of State for Education by:

Signed:........ YA sAy( ................ Date: 25 May 2011

Lord Hill of Oareford
Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for Schools

Department for

Educalion

Page 15



Agenda ltem 4

LEARY OF g
s T4y

Rt Hon Michael Gove MP
Secretary of State

Sanctuary Buildings Great Smith Street Westminster London SW1P 3BT
tel: 0370 0012345 ministers@education.gsi.gov.uk

To: The Chair of Governors of Formby High School
Sefton Local Authority

ACADEMY ORDER

1. This is an Academy Order made further to section 4 of the Academies
Act 2010.

2. | hereby order that on the conversion date Formby High School shall be
converted into an Academy. '

3. The conversion date shall be the date that the Academy opens as a
school further to and as provided for in Academy arrangements made
further to section 1 of the Academies Act 2010.

4. On the conversion date Sefton Local Authority shall cease to maintain
Formby High School.

5. The independent school standards (as defined in section 157(2) of the
Education Act 2002} are to be treated as met in relation to the Academy
on the conversion date.

Signed on behalf of the Secretary of State for Education by:

Signed:.....

............. )‘7 Date: 25 May 2011

Lord Hill of Oareferd
Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for Schools

Department for

Educatlion

Page 16



Agenda ltem 4

Rt Hon Michael Gove MP
Secretary of State

Sanctuary Bulldings Great Smith Street Westminster London SW1P 3BT
tel: 0370 0012345 ministers@education.gsi.gov.uk

To: The Chair of Governors of Greenbank High School
Sefton Local Authority

ACADEMY ORDER

1. This is an Academy QOrder made further to section 4 of the Academies
Act 2010.

2. | hereby order that on the conversion date Greenbank High School shall
be converted into an Academy.

3. The conversion date shall be the date that the Academy opens as a
school further to and as provided for in Academy arrangements made
further to section 1 of the Academies Act 2010.

4. On the conversion date Sefton Local Authority shall cease to maintain
Greenbank High School.

. 5. The independent school standards (as defined in section 157(2) of the
Education Act 2002) are to be treated as met in relation to the Academy
on the conversion date.

Signed on behalf of the Secretary of State for Education by:

Signed:...... /]

... y ................. Date: 25 May 2011
Lord Hill of Oareford

Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for Schools

Department for

Education

Page 17



Agenda ltem 4

Rt Hon Michaal Gove MP
Secretary of State

Sanctuary Buildings Great Smith Street Westminster London SW1P 3BT
tel: 0370 0012345 ministers@education.gsi.gov.uk

To: The Chair of Governors of Maghull High School
Sefton Local Authority

ACADEMY ORDER

1. This is an Academy Order made further to section 4 of the Academies
Act 2010,

2. | hereby order that on the conversion date Maghull High School shall be
converted into an Academy.

3. The conversion date shall be the date that the Academy opens as a
school further to and as provided for in Academy arrangements made
further to section 1 of the Academies Act 2010.

4. On the conversion date Sefton Local Authority shall cease to maintain
Maghull High School. '

5. The independent school standards (as defined in section 157(2) of the
Education Act 2002) are to be treated as met in relation to the Academy
on the conversion date.

Signed on behalf of the Secretary of State for Education by:

Signed:....... N

‘&y ............... Date: 25 May 2011

Lord Hill of Qareford
Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for Schools

Department for

Education
Page 18



Agenda ltem 4

Rt Hon Michael Gove MP
Secretary of State

Sanctuary Buildings Great Smith Street Westminster London SW1P 3BT
tel: 0370 0012345 ministers@education.gsi.gov.uk

To: The Chair of Governors of Range High School
Sefton Local Authority

ACADEMY ORDER

1. This is an Academy Order made further to section 4 of the Academies
Act 2010.

2. | hereby order that on the conversicn date Range High School shall be
converted into an Academy,

3. The conversion date shall be the date that the Academy opens as a
school further to and as provided for in Academy arrangements made
further to section 1 of the Academies Act 2010.

sarainm A

- Range High School.

i
¢
ol
@
<
C

5. The independent school standards (as defined in section 157(2) of the
Education Act 2002) are to be treated as met in relation to the Academy
on the conversion date.

Signed on behalf of the Secretary of State for Education by:

Lord Hill of Oareford
Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for Schools

Department for

Education

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Academy Conversion Agreements

